
Berkeley Unified School District 
Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes 

November 29th, 2023 – 4:30PM 

1. Call to Order
The meeting was held in a hybrid format, live in the Board Room and via Zoom meeting #811
4287 6822. The meeting was called to order at 4:32PM.

2. Roll Call & Establishment of Quorum
Chairperson Zenor-Davis, Vice-Chairperson Goldstein and Commissioner Roter were present,
and a quorum was established.

3. Public Comments
None.

4. Approval & Adoption of Agenda
Commissioner Roter asked to amend the agenda wording on item 5a, to read “disciplinary
appeal” instead of “potential litigation”. He moved to approve and adopt the agenda as
amended; Vice-Chairperson Goldstein seconded the motion,
Approved, 3-0.

5. Closed Session
The Personnel Commission went into closed session at 4:35PM for the following items:

a) Discussion of disciplinary appeal: California Government Code §54954.5
b) Performance Evaluation of the Executive Director, Classified Personnel: California

Government Code §54954.5 (e)

6. Report from Closed Session
The meeting reconvened at 5:46PM. Chairperson Zenor-Davis reported that the commissioners
met with a hearing officer candidate for the disciplinary appeal hearing, voted to delegate
oversight of the disciplinary appeal to the hearing officer and that the commissioners will be
ratifying an agreement at the December 13th Personnel Commission meeting.  The
commissioners continued their discussion of the Executive Director’s annual performance
evaluation.

7. Approval of Meeting Minutes
a) October 25th, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes

With no changes to note, Vice-Chairperson Goldstein moved to approve item 7a; Commissioner
Roter seconded the motion,
Approved, 3-0

b) November 9th, 2023 Special Meeting Minutes
With no changes to note, Commissioner Roter moved to approve item 7b; Vice-Chairperson
Goldstein seconded the motion,
Approved, 3-0

8. Reports
a) Union

Mildred Scherr, BCCE Vice-President, expressed concerns related to the testing process,
specifically that the use of a floating passing score has prevented promotional candidates from



making it onto an eligibility list. Ms. Scherr asked the Personnel Commission for further 
discussion. 

b) District
None. 

c) Commissioner
Commissioner Roter thanked Chairperson Zenor-Davis for his service to the Personnel 
Commission and to BUSD. He said that based on Ms. Scherr’s comments about testing, he 
believes clarity and notification to the members about the passing score as part of the job 
application process could be helpful and requested that a greater discussion on testing be part 
of a future meeting agenda. 

Vice-Chairperson Goldstein commended Chairperson Zenor-Davis for his talent and for his 
contributions to the District; she is pleased that Timothy Carter will return as Commissioner. She 
said that the November 8th minutes are a great summary of the process, issues and next steps 
relevant to the Classification & Compensation Study and she looks forward to more information 
on the Phase 2 classifications that had no response from the revised job description review 
process. 

Chairperson Zenor-Davis said it had been an honor to be a part of the Personnel Commission. He 
said the experience helped him to grow in unexpected ways that have been reflected in his 
vocational life and he appreciates the opportunity to have worked with the team.  

d) Personnel Director
Secretary Castillo thanked Chairperson Zenor-Davis for his service and said he appreciated his 
patience and support. He reviewed the examination and personnel activity for October 
highlighting 266 exams and 15 new hires (including 2 promotions). 

e) Classification & Compensation Study
Secretary Castillo reported that the Commissioners had received track change job descriptions 
for the 21 Phase 1 jobs identified by the Steering Committee and BCCE as being ready for the 
Commissioners to review. He reiterated that this is not the final recommendation or review. The 
remaining classifications in Phase 1 have been earmarked by BCCE as needing more attention 
prior to and/or as part of the negotiations with the District. Eric Hall & Associates (EH&A) gave 
an update on Phase 2 at the November 8th Special Meeting and the Commissioners provided 
clear expectations for the Steering Committee. Commissioner Roter will attend the next Steering 
Committee meeting to observe; Vice-Chairperson will be invited to attend a future meeting. 
Secretary Castillo announced that EH&A had agreed to extend the Study through the month of 
January to allow sufficient time for Phase 3 and Phase 4 to be completed; he provided a timeline 
for completing these phases.  

9. Consent Items
a) Buyer
b) Executive Assistant I
c) General Maintenance Worker
d) Instructional Assistant, ECE
e) Instructional Assistant II, SPED

f) Instructional Tech, BASP
g) Instructional Technology

Technician
h) Student Admissions Specialist

Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes 
November 29th, 2023



Vice-Chairperson Goldstein commented that the lists are robust, commended the department 
for new recruitment strategies and for maintaining tight intervals between examinations. Denise 
Diggs-Ray, Administrative Assistant III, asked for clarity about the “training and experience” 
exam. Secretary Castillo explained it is the evaluation of experience based on a candidate’s 
application. Frank Hernandez, Maintenance Engineer, noted “declined” was next to a 
candidate’s name on list 9f and asked for clarification. Secretary Castillo explained it was an 
internal note that should not have been included and had since been corrected. Mr. Hernandez 
said it would be helpful to make that kind of information public and asked if everyone on the list 
had been hired. Secretary Castillo stated that everyone on the list had been offered a position. 
Vice-Chairperson made a motion to ratify eligibility lists 9a-h; Commissioner Roter seconded the 
motion,  
Approved, 3-0 

10. Conference Item
a) 2022-2023 Personnel Commission Annual Report

Secretary Castillo reviewed the personnel activity for 2022-2023 fiscal year. He noted a third
year of positive growth, reflected in the statistics for recruitment, new hires, applications, exams
and adoption of eligibility lists. He said there had been twice as many appeals as the previous
year and that two were granted. He noted that separations had decreased from 77 to 64 which
is a positive reflection on the District and the Personnel Commission. He said that the District’s
generous aid in properly staffing the department has resulted in increased productivity. He
highlighted the four new classifications created through effective collaboration with the District.
He said the merit rules revision project has been educational and he is optimistic that it will be
completed in the coming year. He is proud of the department’s involvement in the Classification
& Compensation Study and knows the District will receive a comprehensive report.
Ms. Diggs-Ray asked if new administrative support positions had been created for the new
Director-level classifications. Secretary Castillo and Vice-Chairperson Goldstein explained that
the Personnel Commission creates classifications based on specifications form the Board of
Education and the District makes determinations about staffing.
Vice-Chairperson Goldstein appreciated the narrative and the statistics provided in the report.
She said that Mr. Castillo has clearly grown into his role as Executive Director.  She said that
there is external evidence that BUSD is attracting high quality candidates. She said the floating
cut score is actually a good sign because it means that fundamentally, the candidates are so
qualified that too many score well on the examination. She said that it will be important to
understand from the Classification & Compensation Study how BUSD compares to peer districts
in terms of compensation and professional environment.
Commissioner Roter agreed with Vice-Chairperson Goldstein’s comments and commended Mr.
Castillo and his staff. He hopes that the District will see the report and recognize the Personnel
Commission’s efforts for making continual improvements to its processes.
Chairperson Zenor-Davis appreciated the annual report. He noted that during his time as
Commissioner, he has seen significant improvement to every aspect of the recruitment process.
Vice-Chairperson Goldstein made a motion to approve the 2022-2023 Personnel Commission
Annual Report; Commissioner Roter seconded the motion,
Approved, 3-0

11. Election of Personnel Commission Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson
Secretary Castillo explained the past practice for electing the Personnel Commission Chairperson
and Vice-Chairperson has been to rotate each commissioner so that no one serves two years in
a row.  The commissioners discussed possible candidates for the election.

Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes 
November 29th, 2023



Vice-Chairperson Goldstein made a motion to elect Isaiah Roter as Chairperson for the 2024 
calendar year; Chairperson Zenor-Davis seconded, 
Approved, 3-0 
Commissioner Roter made a motion to elect Timothy Carter as Vice-Chairperson for the 2024 
calendar year; Vice-Chairperson Goldstein seconded the motion,  
Approved, 3-0 

12. Discussion Item
a) Classification & Compensation Study Phase 1 Recommendations

Vice-Chairperson Goldstein would like to explore how the District can support candidates who
may not have baseline certifications required for some of the historically “hard to fill”, entry-
level classifications (i.e., Nutrition Services, School Safety Officer). Commissioner Roter
suggested the Personnel Commission and the Steering Committee should look at the minimum
qualifications for these entry-level, hard-to-fill classifications to determine if they are
appropriate to each circumstance. Vice-Chairperson Goldstein said that certifications should be
included in the minimum qualifications, but could holding the certification become a condition
of hire? She said it is worth exploring what it would mean if the District is willing to hire a
candidate in the process of obtaining a certification or who is willing to take the steps necessary
to obtain one? She acknowledged the idea is complex and would require coordination with
Human Resources as a stakeholder partner. She said this is a specific concern for the School
Safety Officer classification, since they are urgently needed and difficult to recruit.

Commissioner Roter asked for clarification as to how to interpret the origin of edits in the track
change format job descriptions. Sarah Goodwin, Administrative Assistant III, explained that any
edits not in bold can be attributed to EH&A or the employee, either from the job content
questionnaire or the employee interview; edits in bold can be attributed to the supervisor.
Commissioner Roter suggested that some of remaining Phase 1 classifications (those BCCE
earmarked as needing more attention prior to and/or during District negotiations) could be
brought to the Personnel Commission to potentially reach a recommendation that is agreeable
to the Union and obviate the need for a meet and confer. Secretary Castillo said there is merit in
Commissioner Roter’s suggestion but he must defer to the District and the Unions on how to
proceed.

Mr. Hernandez said that BCCE has the right to meet and confer on all classifications. Malika
Upshur, Senior Human Resources Analyst, said it is important that all of the compensation data
is pulled at the same time so that it is fair for all of the Classified employees.

Commissioner Roter provided specific feedback for the District Services Assistant, Executive
Assistant I, Instructional Specialist, School Administrative Assistant-Early Childhood, and School
Services Assistant draft revised job descriptions. Secretary Castillo took note of the feedback and
said he would provide it either to the Steering Committee or with the hiring managers.

Vice-Chairperson Goldstein asked for the status of the classifications from Phase 2 that did not
have a response from employees during the draft revised job description review process.
Secretary Castillo said that based on feedback from the November 8th Special Meeting, EH&A
had been asked to speak with specific employees to address this gap. Ms. Goodwin provided
some additional participant data from Phase 2.

Ms. Scherr asked to pull the School Services Assistant and Executive Assistant I classification for
further review; Secretary Castillo agreed.

Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes 
November 29th, 2023



13. Public Comments
Ms. Diggs-Ray commented on behalf of Marie Ferguson, School Administrative Assistant II – Sub
Specialist at Berkeley High School, concerning the Classification & Compensation Study and
working out of class due to a shift in duties. Ms. Ferguson said that enrollment procedures
previously handled by the Student Admissions department have been added to her duties; she is
not being properly compensated for these additional duties.

Mr. Hernandez expressed concerns about the process and procedure around examinations,
specifically as it concerns promotional candidates and the passing score. He asked that
promotional candidates be included on the High School Custodial Supervisor eligibility list.

Ms. Diggs-Ray asked for clarification on the timeline for the merit rules revision project.
Commissioner Roter responded that he will begin work on a track change format version of the
District’s current merit rules, incorporating the changes that he and Secretary Castillo have
made during their weekly review session. The track change format will be shared in sections for
review by key stakeholders to provide input to the ongoing draft during a series of special
meetings devoted to the merit rules revision project.

14. Next Meeting
The next regular meeting of the Personnel Commission will be held on December 13 at 4:30 pm
in the Boardroom.

15. Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 7:36 pm.

Personnel Commission Meeting Minutes 
November 29th, 2023




